
 

 

 

MANDAN ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMISSION MINUTES 

 

May 11, 2010 

 

ROLL CALL:  Rick Zander/President, Leonard Bullinger/Vice President, Joe Lukach, 

Robert (Bob) Vayda and Steve Nardello/Fire Chief. 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:  Jason Krebsbach, Geris Hopfauf, Richard Barta/Building 

Official and Kim Fettig/City Engineering. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS:    Proposal by Jen Francis, Indigo Signworks, to 

remove the GMC portion of a wall-mount sign on the face of the Schwann Pontiac 

building at 3812 Memorial Hwy SE. 

 

Jen informed the board that the GMC portion of the sign will be removed and replaced 

with a Buick logo.  Other than that, no additional changes are proposed. 

 

Steve made a motion to approve as presented. 

 

Leonard seconded. 

 

Upon roll call vote, the motion passes unanimously. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS:    Proposal by Pat Wachter, owner and Justin 

Schlenker, Northwest Contracting, to construct some additional commercial condos at 

1820 40 Ave SE. 

 

Geris joins the meeting at approximately 1:05 p.m. 

 

Mr. Wachter indicates that he is proposing a 60 x 200 multi unit commercial condo 

structure and it will match the existing structures.  Leonard questioned if wanes’ coating 

will be installed as on the front structures.  It was noted that since this building will be 

behind the existing structures, it will not have the decorative elements. 

 

Leonard questioned the landscaping.  Mr. Wachter indicated they had finished the front 

structures last fall and with the weather, they have not had time to complete the front 

landscaping as of yet but they are aware they need to do so. 

 



 2 

Steve questioned the driving areas in regards to fire truck access.  It was noted that the 

proposed hard surfaced areas will be sufficient.  It was also noted that fire separation 

walls will be installed just like the first buildings. 

 

Bob questioned the sewer and water lines.  Mr. Wachter indicated that they are already in 

place and showed him where on the plot plan. 

 

Leonard questioned the parking of vehicles on the south side and would this interfere 

with the fire truck access.  They thought not, but would make sure that enough space is 

available.  Also, it was noted that all driving and parking areas will be hard surfaced. 

 

Leonard made a motion to approve as presented with the condition that the landscaping 

that was approved last year (on the previous buildings) be completed this year. 

 

Joe seconded. 

 

Upon roll call vote, the motion passes unanimously. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS:    Proposal by Dave Thompson, Toman Engineering, 

to present for Shorestone Development, to construct two 25-unit apartment buildings at 

4201 21 St SE. 

 

Mr. Thompson indicated from the plot plan that Phase I will entail the proposed west 

building and Phase II will be built at a later date, but they are asking for approval of both 

buildings today. 

 

The colors and the layout will all be similar to the existing building. There will be only a 

slight change in the color for each building and minus some brick.  This way the three 

units will be distinguished by lay-out and color.  Mr. Thompson indicated that the area for 

Phase II will be seeded into grass until time of construction. 

 

The units will have underground and above ground parking (same as existing building).  

Leonard commented that he liked the proposed landscaping. 

 

Steve questioned the driveway size and traffic areas regarding fire truck access.  What is 

provided will be sufficient. 

 

The fire separation will be the same as the first building and it will be fully sprinkled with 

stamped pipes in the garage. 

 

Geris questioned the security lighting.  Mr. Thompson didn’t know the correct answer but 

indicated it should be the same as the first building and he would pass that question to the 

developer.  It was also noted that the dumpster would have to be enclosed. 

 

Richard joins the meeting at 1:16 p.m. 



 3 

 

Geris made a motion to approve as presented with the condition the requirements are met 

for fire truck access. 

 

Leonard seconded. 

 

Upon roll call vote, the motion passes unanimously. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS:    Proposal by Odee Henrickson, owner of the 

property at 2230 Memorial Hwy SE, to re-face the existing structure. It was noted that 

Mr. Henrickson is currently in MN and Richard will be presenting this project. 

 

Richard handed out a material sample to be passed around.   Rick questioned if they just 

sprayed it on the existing metal.  Richard stated that they will be replacing the existing 

exterior with this new material.   

 

Next, Richard reviewed the pictures Mr. Henrickson provided in his packets.  The 

existing building as it currently sits and pictures of a building in Fargo that was re-faced 

with this same material and colors.   Richard stated that the roof and the canopy will not 

be the same as the Fargo building and the proposed colors are Regal White and Light 

Stone.   

 

Mr. Henrickson is also proposing to construct a small shed type building with an open 

face on the back of the property.  This will be constructed of the same materials as the 

main building and will be used to store the cylinders utilized by the business.  At one time 

they had visited the idea of storing them inside, but they would then be required to 

sprinkle the building.  But, they do intend to install chain link fence to prevent anyone 

from stealing the cylinders.      

 

Geris questioned the 50% of quality materials required in the Gateway Ordinance because 

she is uncertain if this particular material would qualify.  Richard stated that the 

ordinance stated material other than metal or fiberglass.  Rick asked if what they were 

proposing was basically to take off the old skin of the building and replace it.  Richard 

concurred.   

 

Geris stated that they needed to make sure the material requirements are met.  Rick 

questioned if the garage door would be vacated and Richard stated it would stay as is.  

Rick stated they would need to do something with the overhead door to comply.   

 

Geris questioned if they were meeting requirements.  Rick read from Ordinance 1027, 

Section 8, Subsection E(i).  Exteriors of industrial buildings shall be comprised of at least 

thirty (30) percent quality materials other than steel and fiberglass; commercial … fifty 

(50) percent ……   Richard stated this property is industrial zoned and they were 

probably just about at 30% with the windows.  Include the doors and they should easily 

meet this requirement.   



 4 

 

Geris didn’t know if she would count the garage door as architectural.  Richard stated that 

in the past they had approved dryvit as an architectural element but Geris stated this is 

metal.  Richard answered that dryvit can be placed on a metal siding and this material’s 

base is metal with a new coverage, so why would this be any different.  Rick asked if this 

was going all across the front.  Richard stated that as far as he knew, it was, but that could 

be clarified.  Steve stated that the picture of the Fargo building looked like it had a brick 

veneer or a different color on the bottom portion of the front of the building.  Richard 

stated that he knew, from previous conversations with Mr. Henrickson, they want to make 

the property attractive.  Steve agreed with this statement and wanted it noted that Mr. 

Henrickson intends to hard surface the entire area.  Leonard asked if they could ask them 

to install slats in the chain link fence to better hide the cylinders in the back area.  Richard 

thought Mr. Henrickson would consider the idea.  Geris asked if there was brick or 

something on the front of the building currently.  Leonard stated there was some type of 

brick (whether real or fake is unknown).   

 

Bob questioned if they were doing some major sewer work.  Richard stated it was already 

done.   Bob stated that something caught his eye.  On one drawing it indicated the 

easement as 35 feet and on another it was indicated at 45 feet.  Which is correct?  Steve 

asked if Richard could call him.   

 

Richard has Mr. Henrickson on the phone.  He stated the panels would be on the entire 

south (front) side and the east side.  And for now, nothing is proposed with the existing 

overhead door on the front/face of the building.  The color (inaudible)   Geris stated that 

he would be required to have three architectural elements due to the length of his 

building.  Richard told Mr. Henrickson he may have to call him back again. 

 

Geris refers to the Gateway requirements and she thinks this is the type of project that, in 

essence, we (commission) should make sure all our Gateway requirements are filled so 

that as further development happens on the strip they are all being done in the same 

format so that the neighbors have a nice looking building next to them.  Geris read from 

Ordinance 1012, Section 8, Subsection E(ii) and the requirement that the building shall 

incorporate three architectural elements.   

 

Steve stated that what they should do is table this proposal and have Mr. Henrickson 

come back next week with a more complete proposal.  Geris said to make sure Mr. 

Henrickson has a copy of the ordinance and he follows all the requirements.  Steve 

questioned the trim color since it was not noted but got no answer.     

 

Rick stated that he has about 1,200 square feet of frontage.  To meet the 30% 

requirement, he only needs to have 350 square feet of other materials.  Geris states that 

she thinks the definition of an architectural material is something that is very long lasting 

and maintains it quality and appearance over a period of time.    

 



 5 

Steve asked Richard to again visit with Mr. Henrickson; ask him to attend the meeting; 

and have a more complete proposal. 

 

Leonard indicated there is no landscaping proposed and since they required Twin City 

Implement to have landscaping they should also.  Steve noted that possibly the blank area 

near the approach could have some type of landscaping planted.  Geris stated that they 

also needed to know their lighting plans.  The windows on the south, east and west 

should all be treated equally since they are all visible from Memorial Hwy.  Awnings 

were suggested.  (All talking at once) Someone asks if the windows on the sides will be 

covered up.  Geris brought up the over-head door again.  Rick asked that since they were 

re-skinning the building, could they move the door to the west side.  Richard stated no.  

The perlins would not allow this.  It was asked how they could ask them to move a door 

when it has always been this way.  Geris stated they could dress it up.     

 

Bob stated that it would be nice if they had pictures of the building so they could see 

exactly what they are proposing to do.  Geris thinks that if they had a copy of the 

requirements… Bob added that, like he said, if they submitted pictures it would be easier 

to visualize their proposal.  Geris stated that it could be as simple as putting an awning 

over the front door.   

 

Geris makes a motion to not approve the project as presented; have this proposal come 

back; and fulfill all the Gateway requirements (landscaping, lighting, fencing, include 

pictures, windows, garage door, materials and structural elements). 

 

Leonard seconded. 

 

Upon roll call vote, Richard nay; Geris aye; Joe aye; Leonard aye; Rick aye; Steve aye; 

Bob aye. 

 

Motion passes. 

 

Rick brought up the fact that the Silver Dollar put up a new sign on the west side without 

a permit but it was noted “they thought” Mann Signs was the contractor.   

 

Leonard brought up the Boilermakers.  They have not, as of yet, done any type of 

landscaping. 

 

MINUTES:  Approve the minutes from the may 4
th

 meeting. 

 

Steve made a motion to approve as presented. 

 

Richard seconded. 

 

Upon vote, motion passes unanimously. 

 



 6 

Steve questioned if anyone had contacted M & H concerning the advertising signs up by 

the refinery.   It was noted the 30 days had not expired yet for temporary signs, but they 

would be notified. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:54 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                          

Approved by:      Date 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by: 

Mary Olsen/Admin. Specialist 

 

 


